
Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
Directorate 

Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House, 107-117 Botchergate, 
Carlisle, CA1 1RD  Tel 01228 227354  

Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

 

  

 

 

12 September 2022 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the Holehird 

Trust Joint Committee 
 
 
 
  

Agenda 
 
 

HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 
A meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Tuesday 20 September 2022 

 Time: 10.00 am 

 Place: Council Chambers, Kendal 

 
 
Catherine A. Parkinson 
Interim Chief Legal Officer (Monitoring Officer)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Daniel Hamilton 
Direct Line: 07920700299 
Email: daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk 
 
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 

 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 



 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Appointed by Eden Local Committee 
 
Mr A Connell 
Mr P Dew 
Mr D Whipp 
 
Appointment by South Lakeland Local Committee 
 
Mr J Bland 
Mr W Clark 
Ms B Gray 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0  
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Legal and Democratic Services Unit at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=124&Year=0


 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

PART 1 - ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC   
 
 
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
   
 
2   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a)  Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
 executed; and  

 
 (b) Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 



 

 
(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 

of the authority; and 
 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).   
   
 
3   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
   
 
4   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 June 2022 (copy enclosed). 
 
  (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
 
5   CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 

 
To consider a report from the Director of Finance (s151 Officer).  
 
  (Pages 11 - 22) 
 
 
6   GRANT APPLICATIONS 

 
To consider grant applications received by Cumbria Community Foundation (copy 
enclosed). 
 
  (Pages 23 - 64) 
 
 



 

7   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting will be held on 21 November 2022 at County Hall, Kendal.  
   
 
PART 2 - ITEMS  CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 
 
8   PROPERTY MATTERS 

 
To consider a report from the Land Agent (copy enclosed). 
   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee held on Tuesday, 14 
June 2022 at 10.00 am at County Offices, Kendal.  
 
 

PRESENT: 
 
  
 

Mr J Bland 
Mr W Clark 
 

Mr P Dew (Acting Chair)  
 

 
Officers in Attendance:- 
 
Mr D Rawle - Senior Estates Surveyor 
Mr D Routledge - Finance Officer - Children's Services Finance 
Mr D Hamilton - Democratic Services Officer 
Mrs J Dixon                     -     Savills Representative 
Mr M Towers - Savills Representative 
Ms E Clements - Cumbria Community Foundation 
 

  
PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 

PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 
17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies were received from Mrs B Gray and Mr A Connell.  
 
As the Chair was unable to attend the meeting, Mr P Dew was elected as Chair for 
this meeting only.  
 
 
18 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations made on this occasion.  
 
 
19 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED that, the Committee exclude the press and public during 

consideration of Item 8 on the Agenda (Property Matters). 
 
 
20 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

7

Agenda Item 4



RESOLVED that, the minutes of the previous meeting of the Holehird Trust 
Joint Committee held on 3 March 2022 were agreed as 
an accurate and complete record.  

 
 
21 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 
 
Members considered a report from the Director of Finance (s151 Officer) which 
sought to determine the amounts to be made available for distribution on grants and 
fees for the 2022-23 financial year.  

The Finance Officer explained that at the meeting held on 8 July 2021 it was 
decided to add the 2020-21 under allocated amount of grants and fees of £5,992 to 
the amount originally made available for distribution in 2021-22 of £50,000. 
Therefore, the amount made available for distribution in 2021-22 was £ 55,992. In 
the 2021-22 financial year £ 52,766 was approved for distribution on grants with a 
further £ 5,277 (10% of grants) on fees, a total of £ 58,043. 

Members were asked to note the small over  allocation in the 2021/22 financial year 
and agreed to reduce this from the £ 50,000 amount to be distributed in the 2022/23 
financial year leaving £ 47,949. 

 The Finance Officer also asked members to consider whether any of the COIF 
(Charities Official Investment Fund) investments needed to be sold to finance future 
expenditure. The Savills representatives explained that a significant sum would 
need to be made available in the near future to cover surveying costs as well as the 
cost of professional services. The Finance Officer agreed that COIF Investments 
would need to be sold at some stage it was at the Committee’s discretion as to 
when to permit the sale. A discussion took place on the topic and the Finance 
Officer suggested that a sale of investments worth £50,000 would cover grants for 
the year and should be considered the minimum amount to realise to cover statutory 
requirements. Trustees agreed in principle that £50,000 worth of COIF investments 
be sold if necessary to cover future costs. 

RESOLVED that,   
 
1) members AGREED to reduce the over - allocation from the £ 50,000 amount 

to be distributed in the 2022/23 financial year leaving £ 47,949 for distribution 
on grants 
 

2) members AGREED in principle to realising £50,000 worth of investments in 
COIF (Charities Official Investment Fund) if necessary to finance future 
expenditure. 

 

 
22 GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 
Members considered the recommendations of the Senior Grants & Donor Services 
Officer from Cumbria Community Foundation.  
 

8



RESOLVED that,  the Trustees approve the following grants:- 
 

23561 Youth Presence 
Youth Worker 
Requested - £9,000.00 
AGREED - £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & Young People 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
23583 1st Stavely Brownies 
Adventurous overnight trip to Waddow 
Requested - £800.00 
AGREED - £800.00 
Priority – Children & Young People 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
23594 Windermere Rowing Club 
Purchase of a Explorer 21 Trainer Single Scull  
Requested - £1,500.00 
AGREED - £1,000.00 
Priority – all age groups 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
23642 North Lancashire & South Cumbria Motor Neurone Disease Association 
Motor Neurone Support Group Costs  
Requested - £911.00 
AGREED - £911.00 
Priority – People with a disability 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries 
 
 

 
23 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Holehird Trust Joint Committee is due to take place on 20 
September 2022 in County Offices, Kendal.  
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11:00 am 
  

 
 

 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3 

 
 

HOLEHIRD TRUST JOINT COMMITTEE Paper 
No 

 

** 

Meeting date: 20 September 2022 

From: Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 

 
 

CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT 2020-23 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT and DISTRIBUTIONS 2022-23 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report wishes to determine the amounts to be made available for 
distribution on grants and fees for the 2022-23 financial year.  

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 There are no strategic planning or equality implications. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Members are asked to determine the amounts to be made available for 
distribution on grants and fees for the 2022-23 financial year.  
 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 At the meeting held on 14th June 2022 it was decided to reduce the 2021-22 
over allocated amount of grants and fees of £ 2,051 to the amount originally 
made available for distribution in 2022-23 of £ 50,000. 

4.2 The amount made available for distribution in 2021-22 was £ 55,992.  

4.3 In the 2021-22 financial year £ 52,766 was approved for distribution on grants 
with a further £ 5,277 (10% of grants) on fees, a total of £ 58,043. 

4.4 There was a small overallocation of £ 2,051 in the 2021-22 financial year on 
grants and fees. 

4.5 The amount available for distribution in 2022-23 is £ £ 47,949. 

4.6 At the meeting on 14th June 2022 grants of £ 4,711 (and fees of £ 471) were 
awarded leaving £ 42,767 still available for distribution in 2022-23. 

 

11

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

OPTIONS 

4.7 To note the amounts to be made available for distribution on grants and fees 
for the 2022-23 financial year.  
  

5.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 These are set out in the report. 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report at this stage. 

7.0 CONCLUSION 

7.1 To determine the amounts to be made available for distribution on grants and 
fees for the 2022-23 financial year.  
 

 
 

 
David Routledge 
Finance Officer (Childrens Services) 
05 September 2022. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Financial statements for the five months ended 31.08.22 
 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Electoral Division(s): All within the former County of Westmorland 

 

Executive Decision Yes*   

 

Key Decision   No* 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?     N/A* 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?   No* 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

    N/A* 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

  No* 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

    N/A* 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   No*   

   

 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
Holehird Trust Joint Committee, 14th June 2022, Minute No. 21 
 
 
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Finance Team files containing details of grants, allocations and correspondence with 
Cumbria Community Foundation re the agreement. 
 

Contact: David Routledge    Tel: 07971 446147 
         E-Mail :  david.routledge@cumbria.gov.uk 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Balance Sheet as at 31.08.22

Note 31.08.22 31.03.22 31.08.21 31.03.21

Fixed Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets 3 8,555,060 8,555,060 8,555,060 8,555,060

Investments 2 732,204 886,106 883,723 793,793

 

9,287,264 9,441,166 9,438,783 9,348,853

Current Assets

Debtors 4 13,847 17,920 27,748 24,939

Cash 65,576 51,742 74,040 62,681

79,423 69,662 101,788 87,620

Liabilities: due within one year 5 0 90,244 0 0

Net Current Assets 79,423 -20,582 101,788 87,620

Net Assets 9,366,687 9,420,584 9,540,571 9,436,473

Represented By:

Funds and Reserves 6

Unrestricted Funds 864,635 918,532 1,038,519 934,421

Revaluation Reserve 8,502,052 8,502,052 8,502,052 8,502,052

9,366,687 9,420,584 9,540,571 9,436,473

15



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

 

Income & Expenditure Account for the five months ended 31.08.22

 Note  31.08.22 31.03.22 31.08.21 31.03.21

Incoming Resources

Sale of COIF Units 150,000 0 0 100,000

Rents 99,906 226,313 107,099 223,210

Easements 0 0 0 6,000

Insurance Claims 0 5,455 5,455 0

Miscellaneous Sales 0 326 0 0

Total incoming Resources 249,906 232,094 112,554 329,210

Resources Expended

Capital Works & Refurbishment 0 0 0 112,932

Building & Ground Maintenance 34,994 62,024 19,533 110,205

Other Premises Costs 64,562 59,607 12,847 26,735

Other  45,163 160,622 44,968 32,577

Grants 4,711 52,766 19,125 40,007

Fees 471 5,277 1,913 4,001

Total Resources Expended 149,901 340,296 98,386 326,457

Net Incoming / Outgoing ( - ) Resources 100,005 -108,202 14,168 2,753

Other Recognised Gains and Losses

Unrealised Gains / ( - Losses)

on Investments 2 -153,902 92,313 89,930 73,207

Net Movement in Funds 6 -53,897 -15,889 104,098 75,960

Balance B/F 6 918,532 934,421 934,421 858,461

Balances C/F 6 864,635 918,532 1,038,519 934,421

17



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Charity Reg No. 235345

Notes to the accounts for the five months ended 31.08.22

1 Accounting Policies

These accounts have been prepared using the accruals convention and in accordance 

with applicable accounting standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice

on Accounting by Charities.

2 Unrealised Gains on Investments

Valuation at 31.08.22 was 23,021.16 pence per COIF accumulation share.

3,180.57 units were held at this date.

£

Valuation of Holding at 31.03.22 886,106

Valuation of Holding at 31.08.22 732,204

Unrealised Gain / ( - Loss) -153,902

3 Tangible Fixed Assets

£

Valuation at 31.03.22 8,555,060

Additions for year 0

Disposals for year 0

Revaluation in year 0

Net Book Value at 31.08.22 8,555,060

4 Debtors 2022/23 2021/22

Rents 13,847 17,920

13,847 17,920

5 Liabilites - due within one year 2022/23 2021/22

General Creditors 0 90,244

0 90,244

6 Reserves

Unrestricted Revaluation

Funds Reserve

Balance at 31.03.22 918,532 8,502,052

Movement in Year -53,897 0

Balance at 31.08.22 864,635 8,502,052

19



This page is intentionally left blank



THE HOLEHIRD TRUST

Schedule of Grants paid 2022-23

Organisation Application No Awarded (£) Locality

Youth Presence 23561 2,000 South Lakeland

1st Stavely Brownies 23583 800 South Lakeland

Windermere Rowing Club 23594 1,000 South Lakeland

North Lancashire & South Cumbria Motor Neurone Disease Association 23642 911 South Lakeland

4,711

21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 20th September 2022 

 

     
All of the applications are eligible geographically and have been selected on the Trusts 
charitable objectives and priorities – Older People, Disabled People, Children and Youth. 
All projects have been assessed on the Community Foundation’s standard procedure. 
 
Amount requested £44,744.60 
Amount recommended £14,162.60 
Amount available £40,744.00 
 
23897 Allithwaite & Cartmel Parish Council 
Rebuilding of the Riverside Public Toilets 
Requested £5,000.00 
Recommend £2,000.00 
Priority – People with a disability 
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
 
23891 Stainton Institute 
External ramp for disabled 
Requested £7,000.00 
Recommend £1,180.00 
Priority – People with a disability 
Charitable objectives - to provide facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
23727 Lake District Foundation 
Love your lake 
Requested £9,781.00 
Recommend £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & Young People 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries. 
 
 
23871 Kendal Parkinsons 
Subsidised exercise group and lunches 
Requested £500.00 
Recommend £500.00 
Priority – Older people 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries. 
 
 
23790 PBC Foundation 
Bear facts magazine 
Requested £607.60 
Recommend £607.60 
Priority – People with a disability 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries. 
 
23912 Heron Corn Mill 
Food for thought 
Requested £6,700.00 
Recommend £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & Young People 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries. 

23

Agenda Item 6



HOLEHIRD TRUST – 20th September 2022 

 

 
23875 Kendal Windows on Art 
Small steps, making connections 
Requested £2,375.00 
Recommend £2,375.00 
Priority – all age groups 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries. 
 
23713 Western Dales community bus service 
Operations manager 
Requested £3,000.00 
Recommend £1,500.00 
Priority – all age groups 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities to beneficiaries 
 
23885 Crosby Ravensworth Parish Council 
Play Area 
Requested £9,781.00 
Recommend £2,000.00 
Priority – Children & Young People 
Charitable objectives - to provide activities and facilities to beneficiaries. 
 

24



Grants Application – Multi Fund 
 

Applicant Details 

Organisation 
Allithwaite and Cartmel Parish 
Council 

Application No  
23897 

Grants Officer 
 

Ellen Clements District South Lakeland 

Aims of the 
group 

Lower Allithwaite Pariish Council is a non-political civil parish established under the 
Local Government Act 1894. The main areas of the Parish are Allithwaite, Cartmel 
and Lower Holker. Councillors are all unpaid elected volunteers. 
To help provide, support and encourage arts and crafts, village halls, provision and 
maintenance of differing facilities within the community, creation of local plan. To try 
and provide facilities and areas which will improve the facilities within the civil parish. 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

5 Sustainable Cities & Communities 

 

Funding Request 

 Project Cost £250,000.00  Total requested £5,000.00 

 

Funding Recommendation 

Fund Name Recommended Panel Date 

Holehird Trust Fund £2,000.00 20/09/2022 

Johnson Fund £2,000.00 20/09/2022 

Roselands Trust Fund £1,000.00 20/09/2022 

Total amount recommended £5,000.00  

   

Expenditure 

 
Volunteer costs: £0.00 
Parish Councillors are unpaid volunteers. 
 
Operational costs: £0.00 
Maintenances of the toilets will cost approximately 
£10,000 pa funded in part by a small charge on 
entry and the balance from the PC. 
 

 
Capital costs: £5,000.00 
There is a considerable Capital Cost for the 
Changing Places Facility but that forms part of the 
tendered price. 
We are able to recover VAT on all elements. 
 
Publicity costs: £0.00 
We intend to publicise completion of the toilets' not 
only for the benefit of users but also to 
acknowledge the financial contributions towards its 
rebuild. 
 

Quotes 
Received 

Yes 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£110,000.00 SLDC £20,00; A&CPC £15,000; Cartmel Village Society 
£15,000; Bradley Park Restoration £15,000 and the 
Community Lottery Fund £45,000 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

Yes Several including SLDC Shared Prosperity Fund to secure 
the balance needed. 

 

Project Details 

Project title Rebuilding of the Riverside Public Toilets 

What would you The grant will go towards the cost of providing a Changing Places Disability Toilet in 

25



like to do with 
your grant? 

addition to a unisex toilet within the proposed rebuilding of the dilapidated and closed 
village toilets for which all relevant consents have been obtained. 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

When the toilets had to be closed there was consternation from those in the village 
who used them frequently even though they had become not fit for purpose and 
insanitary. The PC has and continues to be lobbied not just by residents but also 
visitor operators when toilets' will become available as these impacts on their 
potential length of stay. Visitors to our mediaeval village and 12thC Priory frequently 
enquire where there are toilets and when asked the best, we can offer is to direct 
them to one of the businesses or the racecourse where there are privately operated 
toilets accessed through their 'pay on entry' car park. 

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

Everyone is disadvantaged if they cannot access toilets in the village centre without 
having to prevail on businesses when not a customer. Older residents and those with 
severe disabilities find it difficult to access services when there is a risk of 'being 
taken short'. It is also embarrassing to explain to visitors there are no toilets except 
those that are privately owned whilst on occasions to find some returning after a 
number of years away from the village, venture to the closed toilets' and despite 
signs to the contrary, expect to find them open.  
 

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

As the aged public toilets' within the village centre are closed, not being fit for 
purpose, providing new and up to date facilities especially for the disabled is 
considered a priority for the Parish Council. Readily accessible toilets are essential 
not just for villagers but also for the burgeoning number of year-round visitors to 
Cartmel. Everyone requires toilets. Whilst the village has a number of pubs and 
restaurants etc, toilets are only available for customers, and few have adequate 
disabled facilities. The project will rectify this shortcoming. 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

There has been no need to collate nor measure the benefits because everyone at 
some point needs toilets. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

The one off project will last indefinitely once built and operational. 

No of 
beneficiaries 

1000 No of volunteers 4 

  

Assessment 

Organisation Parish Council who would like to not only provide a new toilet block following the 
closure of their previous one but would like to make them suitable as a changing 
spaces toilet. 
 

Finances Accounts dated 11/08/2022 show an income of £186,398 with £38,930 coming from 
the parish precept. Expenditure of £186,398 
 

Need & Demand Despite the increasing number of Changing Places toilets, there are still not enough 
to meet the demand and many areas of the UK do not have one at all. Without them, 
people with a disability have to stay at home or their family carers have to resort to 
changing them on dirty toilet floors. 
Changing Places toilets will help many of these people to take part in the day-to-day 
activities most of us take for granted. 
 

Project A new building project to provide a full changing places facility that meets the 
requirements needed. 
 26



Budget / Value 
for Money 

This is a costly project due to all the restrictions and items required for a changing 
palaces facility. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

This is a one-off project. 

Impact Changing Places are fully accessible toilets and designed so that they are 
completely accessible and provide sufficient space and equipment for people who 
are not able to use the toilet independently. They must be an extra facility, in addition 
to the accessible toilets for independent use.  
Changing Places toilets are larger accessible toilets for severely disabled people, 
with equipment such as hoists, privacy screens, adult-sized changing benches, 
peninsula toilets and space for carers. 
 

Safeguarding Draft safeguarding policy provided but it does not have a named safeguarding officer 
or their contact details. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Changing places toilets tend to be in large buildings such as hospitals, service 
stations, or leisure centres.  They are very sparse in Cumbria. 
 

Conditions Conditional on them raising most of the project costs and the project can go ahead 
and a finalised safeguarding policy. 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of allocations No. of approved allocations Total Amount Awarded 

2 1 £500.00 

 

27



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application – Multi Fund 
 

Applicant Details 

Organisation Stainton Institute Application No  23891 

Grants Officer 
 

Ellen Clements District South Lakeland 

Aims of the 
group 

The aims of the charity 1125601 are; 
-Provision of a building for services/activities for the benefit of the residents of 
Stainton Parish (Kendal) and outlying districts of South Lakeland; including 
education, leisure activities and entertainment without distinction of political, religious 
or other opinions  
-To provide a safe meeting place which is run by fully trained volunteers with a 
programme of stimulating /cultural events and activities which will be inclusive of 
everyone in the community including. 
The elderly, young people, families, parents and carers with babies/toddlers, people 
with mental health issues and people who are lonely and feel isolated living in a rural 
parish, people with physical disabilities/mobility  
issues who are unable to access the building without the support and full access to 
disabled facilities including disabled access vehicle parking  
-Preservation of an historic building listed Grade Two 
-Promotion of integration of measures and technologies into the historic building to 
reduce the carbon footprint including full cavity wall insulation, roof and ceiling 
insulation double glazed windows 
-Free access to hyper fast B4RN broadband and internet facilities (achieved in 2019 
with B4RN agreement as long as Stainton Institute remains a community building ) 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

5 Sustainable Cities & Communities 

 

Funding Request 

 Project Cost £20,000.00  Total requested £7,000.00 

 

Funding Recommendation 

Fund Name Recommended Panel Date 

Holehird Trust Fund £1,180.00 20/09/2022 

Roselands Trust Fund £1,000.00 20/09/2022 

Johnson Fund £1,000.00 20/09/2022 

Total amount recommended £3,180.00  

   

Expenditure 

  
Capital costs: £7,000.00 
4 -Estimate 1 Invoice : Cell pave AP plastic mesh 
screening 400 units/ haulage and carriage to site 
£8536 (Approved as stronger /good feedback from 
contractor who visited other sites in use ) 
   
-Estimate 2 invoice: Solway Direct: Easy Pave 
plastic mesh screening 300 units /haulage and 
carriage to site £4302.   
2 estimates received, meetings held with 
landowner and contractor site measured again 400 
units needed. 
Approved estimate 1 More substantial product and 
allows natural grass to grow through /if planted in 
wet late Autumn  29



-Invoice 3 :  £6660 Lowther&Dawson Contractor  
(plus advised contingency sum additional £1000) 
Total £7660 approved as continuation of disabled 
ramp already started by contractor with 1 item 
remaining to complete ; ambulant steps and 
associated hand rails linking to rear field  (letter 
sent by  Andy Caruthers  SLDC Building Control 
Principle Building  Control Surveyor attached to 
application )  
 
-Invoice 4 Sheep/cattle grid (optional) to replace 
heavy field gate and alleviate continual monitoring 
of opening and closing gate by volunteers for 
disabled visitors  £3384 excluding fitting. . 
 
 
Additional work by volunteers: Removal of soil 
/removal  of stones and preparing ground /hire of 
equipment for work  Total £320     
Invoice 4  -Cattle grid to replace manual field gate : 
Michael Mudd Invoice £3384   
 

Quotes 
Received 

Yes 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£10,000.00 Unrestricted Funding Reserves Stainton. Institute £10000 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

Yes The Lupton Towwers Trust £1000 The Baldoukie Trust 
£2000 

 

Project Details 

Project title External ramp for disabled 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

Complete  external disabled  ramp work  with the Installation of a rear field restricted 
car park with ambulant steps to connect into existing disabled ramp facilities installed 
in 2021. 
This work is legally required under "Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act ,2016 " by 
SLDC Building Control Officer Andy Carruthers who allowed a temporary access 
solution for disabled people who requires access via ambulant steps until funding 
could be raised and an agreement reached with rear field landowners regarding  
natural screening. 
Reference: Andy Carruthers SLDC Principle Building Control Surveyor building e-
mail buildingcontrol@southlakeland .gov.uk  wrote to Stainton Institute  
" I can confirm that there is now only one item remaining to enable me to consider 
that the work is completed in accordance with the Regulations. 
The ambulant disabled steps and associated handrails are to be provided as and 
when the access from the adjacent field has been agreed with the landowner. 
All other works are now complete and satisfactory including the temporary 
arrangement of external bell push for assistance for ambulant disabled persons. "   
Project activity includes: 
Agreement with the landowners.  
Installing a cattle grid to protect sheep in the rear field  
Widening the entrance to rear field parking to help entrance turn in  
Improve drainage  
Installing a Cell Pave AP plastic mesh system which will allow real grass to grow 
through after re seeding 
Re -siting of headstones inside the graveyard area to facilitate ambulant steps which 
link into the existing disabled ramp. 

How do you People  living in the Parish of Stainton and Outlying districts of South Lakeland are 

30



know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

supporting our project and have been asking how long it will be before the rear car 
parking and additional mobility benefits for disabled people are installed.  
Disabled people wishing to hire the community building are concerned about the 
current access for parking a car through field gate which is heavy and difficult to 
operate and requires the driver to exit and leave the car twice. 
We are situated in a rural environment without public transport and people are 
feeding back to us their frustration about having a beautiful community building which 
is unattainable by public transport  
The Freida Scott Trust recently wanted to hire the building /facilities for a daytime 
meeting of up to 20 people but had to cancel upon learning that car parking was 
limited currently  
This year the building has been used by Stainton Parish Council for three meetings 
attended by SLDC Councillors and Cumbria County Councillors along with local 
people. Feedback from several councillors recorded: A beautiful renovated building 
with excellent facilities, ideal for our purposes, however car parking is an issue 
especially for those with mobility issues as only two with easy access adjacent to the 
building 
This project is required to guarantee future hire bookings in South Lakeland which 
will protect the community building from rising external costs and an uncertain 
economic outlook. 
We have the full support of SLDC Council Leader Jonathan Brook for this project 
who said  
"Having had several visits to Stainton Institute recently I am happy to support your 
grant application " 
 
 
 
 individual feed-back, though our Stainton Chat website, through Stainton Parish 
Council meetings and through Cumbria Community councillors and South Lakeland 
District Council interim leader Jonathan Brook feedback 

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

There is currently no other community building in Stainton to provide a safe meeting 
place for people who are socially isolated and those who look forward to meeting 
other people for support and company.  
People living in Stainton Parish are disadvantaged as it is a rural parish with no 
public transport. 
There is evidence of increasing anxiety, loneliness and social isolation especially in 
the elderly and bereaved and also in young carers and parents /grandparents with 
babies and toddlers to support. 
 
Increasing poverty and rapidly rising energy costs are creating a divide between 
people who can afford childcare and those who are experiencing poverty and 
exclusion form peer groups  
 

Partnership 
working 

We are grateful for the support and advice given by ACTC (Action with Communities 
in Cumbria) 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

-The project will deliver full SLDC Building Control Certification including a lifting of a 
temporary agreement put in place regarding "ambulant steps" ; linking rear field 
through the graveyard to join existing disabled ramp facilities  
- The disability rights of people with mobility issues will be addressed and improved 
with a new disabled access route to Stainton Institute building from the rear field. 
-The existing disabled access for wheelchair users will be greatly improved as 
currently steep and narrow and requires additional assistance from volunteers to help 
manoeuvre up the ramp  
- Stainton Institute will be able to deliver a "natural looking field “area for parking cars 
which is acceptable to the landowners with a legal agreement for residents of 
Stainton and outlying districts of South Lakeland secured. 
-Health and safety of disabled users will improve greatly with enhanced external 
lighting and security. 
- Sheep will be more secure when grazing in the field due to installation of a cattle 
grid. 

31



- Everyone using Stainton Institute will benefit from this project and have been asking 
when the project will be completed. 
- Improved access to the rear field for the farmer and agricultural contractors. 
-Greater confidence regarding security and sheep welfare from landowner, contractor 
farmer, agricultural contractor and Stainton Institute Committee and volunteers  
 
-volunteer time currently spent monitoring and  
 
-Local Contractor Lowther & Dawson Ltd will be able to have work started on 
2021fully signed off by SLDC 
- The future of Stainton Institute as a self-funding Business Charity will be secured  
-   
- 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

SLDC Building Control will inspect and pass the ambulant steps and associated 
handrails linking rear car parking access into the existing disabled ramp  
The finished project will have delivered full disabled rights for individuals under The 
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 and complied with The Equality and 
Human Rights Commission guidance when striving to improve a safe and easy 
access for people into Stainton Institute  
The committee will seek and monitor feedback going forward from users of the 
ambulant steps and users who were previously unable to access the rear field 
parking due to physical difficulties when opening and closing a heavy gate on a steep 
slope. 
The committee will be able to report an increase in bookings from all sectors after the 
project is completed. 
Stainton Parish Council will be able to all meetings inside Stainton Institute instead of 
seeking alternative venues during winter months when car parking is not possible 
due to inclement weather and dangerous ground conditions  
Two local residents: An elderly gentleman with Motor Neurone Disease ( in a 
wheelchair ) and a young woman who is now  unable to walk unsupported following  
a leg injury ( wheelchair user and mobility scooter user )  will both be able to access 
Stainton Institutes facilities and no longer be disadvantaged . 
Previous attempts to access the building have resulted in disappointments and 
fatigue leaving them isolated.  
 
Disabled people will be able to fully access the project facilities  
We will seek feedback and monitor 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

The project will result in a successful resolution to achieving full compliance with The 
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act 2016  
Temporary measures agreed with SLDC Building Control can now be disbanded 
Stainton Institute will continue to strive to ensure everyone including disadvantaged 
and disabled people have a safe, easily accessible area to park their vehicles when 
visiting the community building  
Local residents and people from outlying areas of South Lakeland will have access to 
a newly renovated historic building with full leisure and recreational facilities including 
access to safe/approved disabled car parking for up to 15 cars with easy-to-use 
access all year round for everyone who requires car transport due to no public 
transport available at all  
The " one off project” will deliver all of the above and also contribute towards the 
financial security of the building for many years to come.  
A legally agreed document (currently being drawn up) between Stainton Institute and 
the current land owners will protect the project and ensure the long term economic 
sustainability of Stainton Institute : Charity 1125601  as a viable community building 
with external rear car parking for everyone; including people who have difficulty with 
their mobility , the frail and elderly , and those who are disabled and /or  
disadvantaged due to No public  
transport available for anyone wishing to travel to and access Stainton Institute at 
Stainton Nr Kendal LA80LQ 

Living Wage NA 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

350 No of volunteers 16 

32



  

Assessment 

Organisation Established in 2013, Stainton Institute's main aims is to bring back into use what was 
formerly a URC Chapel and make it a community hub and local village centre for the 
community of Stainton.  The chapel was built in 1697 and was in a bad state before 
this group of volunteers decided to make a facility fit for community use. 
The chapel only has one door and has an under croft as it is built on a incline. 
 

Finances Accounts dated 31/12/2021 show an income of £26,584 and expenditure of £35,606, 
they had a loss of £9,022 but had enough in their account to cover this. 
 

Need & Demand The building, which is Grade II listed, has historic and local importance which 
required significant renovation works. 
Where internal stairs suitable for ambulant disabled people are provided: 
Ambulant steps should contain: - 
(a) the minimum clear width (between enclosing walls, strings or upstands) should 
1200 mm; 
 
(b) a landing should be provided at the top and bottom of each flight. 
 
(c) the landings should be level and have an unobstructed length (clear of any door 
swing) of at least 1200 mm or the width of the flight whichever is greater. 
 
(d) there should be no single steps. 
 
(e) the rise of a flight between landings should not exceed 1800 mm; 
 
(f) all step nosings should incorporate a permanently contrasting continuous material 
on the tread. The material should be between 50 mm and 65 mm wide on the tread 
and should visually contrast with the remainder of the tread (refer to 1.6.4). 
Rationale: This will help people with vision impairment to appreciate the extent of the 
stair and identify the individual treads. 
 

Project Disability access to connect to a ramp to enable everyone to access the building 
safely. 
At least one set of stairs suitable for ambulant disabled people should be provided to 
access all floors above or below entrance level in a building. 
The steps are wider than a normal set of stairs and enable individuals with a Zimmer 
frame to climb comfortably. 
The building is all on one level inside. 
Stairs serve many different functions in a building e.g. a means of escape, a means 
of access for ambulant disabled people 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

The volunteers have fundraised to upgrade the building, and this is the final part of 
the project. They have fundraised through donations and grants but also held 
activities such as cheese and wine and Christmas events. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

The organisation is reliant on grant funding and donations and are undertaking the 
renovation in a ‘phased approach’, this application is for a contribution to costs 
associated with the final phase. 
The work to prepare the graveyard and access area for Ambulant steps linking rear 
field car parking to existing disabled ramp is required by SLDC Building Control. 
Building Control letter from Andy Caruthers provided to confirm this. 
Total costs for this section of work summary:  
£2150 plus VAT £430  
Plus, galvanised steel handrails estimate £600 including VAT  
Grand Total for work associated with Ambulant Steps including handrails  
 
 £3180 including VAT 

Impact Building regulations are unable to sign off the building until the ambulant steps are in 
place.  These will connect to the ramp.  At the moment the ramp is relatively steep 

33



with a dog leg in it.  The steps will be beneficial to people who have mobility 
difficulties and easier to use than the ramp. 
 

Safeguarding Safeguarding policy requested. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Funding requested to provide parking in the field next to the chapel and ambulant 
steps to enable people with mobility issues enter the building. 
The organisation does not own or have a lease for the field next door but are working 
with a solicitor to obtain a lease. As they do not have a legal document other than a 
letter saying they can use the field, we would be unable to support any 
improvements to the field. 
I recommend funding towards the steps to help with access to the building and 
enable them to have building control sign off the work. 

Conditions Conditional on satisfactory safeguarding policy and only to be used for the ambulant 
steps purchase and fitting. 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of allocations No. of approved allocations Total Amount Awarded 

7 6 £24125.00 

 

34



Grant Application  
 

Application Details 

Fund Holehird Trust Grants Officer Annalee Holliday 

Organisation The Lake District Foundation Application No  23727 

Aims of the 
group 

Lake District Foundation (LDF) work across the Lake District National Park, Cumbria – 
which covers over 2000km of landscape in the Northwest of England. The Lake 
District National Park is the largest of the ten designated National Parks in England. 
 
LDF exists to support the landscape, wildlife and cultural heritage of the Lake District.  
Our strategic objectives are to:  
To protect, conserve and care for the environment of the National Park.  
To increase access and engagement of the park by everyone, creating a ‘park for all’.  
To inspire individuals, communities and businesses to care for the park, and 
increasing awareness of the issues that our local environment is facing.  
To support the local community to develop local, community owned solutions to 
protect and conserve the park environment.  
To develop innovative approaches to conserving and sustaining this environment and 
share our learning with others in similar areas.   
To harness the Lake District itself as a catalyst for change – engaging visitors with the 
natural world in ways that can influence behaviour in their own communities. 

Post Town 
 

KENDAL District South Lakeland 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

6 Life on Land 

   

Funding Request 

Project Cost Total requested Amount recommended 

£9,781.00 £9,781.00 £2,000.00 

 

Expenditure 

Staff costs: £5,732.00 
Marketing Manager at £14.4 per hour (salary plus 
on costs) x 4 hours per week x 40 weeks - £1728 
Project Manager: £15.40 per hour (salary plus on 
costs) x 5 hours per week x 52 weeks - £4004 
 
Volunteer costs: £270.00 
Travel expenses for volunteer organisers @ 0.45p 
per mile; 
 
Operational costs: £400.00 
Little pick event materials (first aid kit; cleaning 
products; hand sanitizer) - estimate, number of 
small items. 
 

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £859.00 
Office overheads at 15% of total salary costs 
(meeting and workspace; IT; printing; postage; line 
management) 
 
Capital costs: £2,220.00 
3 x customised beach clean stations @ £500 each 
1 x Station Refill Kit @ £140 
2 x Group Litter Pick kits @ £290 each 
All from the Two Minute Beach Clean Foundation 
(therefore of appropriate quality and responsibly 
and ethically sourced as well as customisable) 
 
Publicity costs: £300.00 
leaflet, poster and QR code design and print 
 
 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£0.00 NA 

Quotes 
Received 

Yes 

 

Project Details 
35



Project title Love Your Lake - Micro Action to Clean Up our Lakes 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

We will deliver a sustained ‘clean up’ campaign centred around Windermere, the 
largest natural lake in England. 
 
Windermere is a nationally important place for wildlife, within both the lake and the 
surrounding shores. However, the lake is facing several threats including the impact 
of wastewater, dwindling reed beds, threats from invasive species and litter, plastic 
pollution.  During the pandemic we have seen just how much people value access to 
natural spaces.  However, we have also experienced significant challenges to our 
local environment as we welcomed ‘new’ users to the park and with a number of 
visitors leaving behind significant amounts of rubbish and litter.  
 
Our project will see a programme of activity, aiming to increase awareness of these 
challenges and engage visitors, businesses and local communities in playing a role 
in tackling the issue of litter and plastic pollution in the lake. 
 
Our project has three aims, with activities delivered under each of them: 
 
Inform – Raise awareness and engage local communities, tourists and the business 
community of the issues facing Windermere and our Lakes.  
 
Act – Inspire and enable people to take individual action through the siting of 3 
‘cleaning stations’, and which we hope will encourage longer term behaviour change, 
and organising and engaging community groups, businesses/tourists in 4+ litter pick 
events. 
 
Learn and Prevent – Analysing evidence drawn from practical action (e.g. types and 
concentration of waste) to develop targeted more initiatives to reduce litter, plastic 
and wastewater pollution 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

LDF have strong links with the business community in the local area, with over 50 
fundraising for us and projects we deliver and support.  Many of our business 
supporters often request opportunities for practical environmental and conversation 
activities for their staff or customers to participate in and so there is demand for 
community based environmental activity which people can meaningfully participate in 
on an ad hoc or occasional basis. 
 
We know that there is significant and sustained community concern for Windermere 
and its health and biodiversity. We have seen significant engagement with other 
recent campaigns to tackle phosphate pollution, citizen science projects to monitor 
the water quality of the lake, and community litter pick responses in the immediate 
aftermath of the pandemic.  As such we feel that there is clear demand from the local 
community in helping to address the issue, and for getting involved as part of the 
solution. 

How has the 
COVID-19 
pandemic affected 
the way you now 
currently support 
your beneficiaries? 

The pandemic has brought many new users to the Lake District, and which has 
played an invaluable role in supporting the health and wellbeing of people during this 
time.  However, some visitors are less familiar with accessing natural spaces and 
may be less well prepared or knowledgeable that more regular visitors. We have a 
seen a number of high-profile and distressing reports of destructive and damaging 
littering in and around our lakes.  We want these visitors to continue to access these 
spaces – and which are after all, parks for all - but we want to support them to do so 
in a way which helps to protect and conserve this unique environment.  The siting of 
visible cleaning stations, opportunities to share and highlight involvement through 
social media, and visible community litter picks will help to raise awareness of 
conservation efforts, make it easy to get involved and hopefully inspire small 
changes in behaviour. 
  

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 

Our project is primarily focused on improving the environment and biodiversity of an 
important green and blue space - Windermere, and as such will not directly target 
disadvantaged communities. However, one of the factors informing the development 
of the project has been the change in visitor demographic during the pandemic, and 
which has been so encouraging to see. Part of our mission is to ensure that the Lake 

36



disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

District is for everyone, and in particular we are keen to see greater access by 
communities from the urban fringe surrounding the park. Our project will play a small 
role in encouraging people to consider the impact of their behaviour on the 
environment and helps to ensure that the park remains and enjoyable and accessible 
place for all.  
 

Partnership 
working 

We are a member of the Lake District National Park Partnership, a formally 
constituted group of 25 key stakeholders working across the National Park (including 
local councils, the Wildlife Trust, Environment Agency and National Farmers Union) 
representing a wide range of interests.  We share the view that the future of the 
National Park will only be secured by working together. Whilst our project is not 
directly delivered in partnership, we will inform and engage our partners and 
stakeholders in the work of the project. This includes: 
 
Lake Users – We will further develop our links with recreational users of the lake, 
including Lake District Open Water Swimmers, Swim the Lakes, Chill Swim and 
yacht, boating and rowing clubs increasing awareness of the importance of reducing 
plastic pollution into the lake and encouraging longer term behaviour change.  
 
Public bodies – As a member of the LDNP Partnership we have established 
relationships with key public bodies, e.g. Environment Agency and LDNP Authority, 
who we will work with to ensure that our proposed project links in with wider 
initiatives regarding the lake.  We will share evidence and learning generated 
through this project to inform local policy regarding the improvement and 
preservation of Windermere,   
 
Local communities - We have strong school, community, and business networks 
through small grants programmes that we deliver and have a growing network of 
community links.  Through outreach work we will engage with these groups, 
supporting them to inform and participate in clean up and research activities. 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

Our work is focussed on improving the environment of Windermere. Windermere is a 
nationally important place for wildlife, within the lake and the surrounding shores, 
However, the lake is facing several threats including the impact of wastewater, 
dwindling reed beds, threats from invasive species and litter, plastic pollution. Our 
project, which is part of a wider programme of activity we are developing, will seek 
specifically to tackle the issue of litter and plastic pollution in the lake (with LDF 
leading other projects working to tackle issues such as phosphate pollution). 
 
Our project will aim to tackle this issue, and in doing so seek to increase community 
engagement in responding to the issue and build understanding of the impact and 
causes of litter and plastic pollution around the lake. 
Our project will seek to contribute to a range of short- and longer-term outcomes 
which will aim to improve the health of Windermere. These include: 
- Increased level of community, business and voluntary activity and volunteering in 
conservation activities around the Lake 
- Reduced levels of pollution (litter and plastic) around the Lake area 
- Improved visual appearance of the Lake and surrounding environment 
-Improved public awareness about the causes and consequences of litter and plastic 
pollution around the Lake 
-Increased level of knowledge and understanding regarding the factors contributing 
to and causing litter and plastic pollution around the lake. 
 -The conservation and protection of important natural spaces (longer term outcome) 
- Improved water quality (longer term outcome) 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

For the range of project outcomes we have identified (and which relates to our wider 
organisational Theory of Change which forms the framework for all the evaluation of 
all project activities which we run) we will identify several outcome indicators for each 
of the outcomes our project aims to achieve.  This may include numbers of 
participants in clean up events, numbers of cleaning station hosts, estimates of litter 
collections, recording evidence of skills developed, and use of before and after 
photographs. 
  37



Data and evidence from this project will then be used to inform preventative activity 
for example, developing a programme of visitor or specific recreational users group 
awareness raising activity relating to identified areas of concern. We will also aim to 
share data through 2 Minute Beach Clean App, adding to wider understanding of 
litter and plastic pollution. Through this work we hope our work will continue to have 
impact on improving the habitat around Lake Windermere after the formal conclusion 
of the project. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

This work will feed into a much wider programme of work which we have developed 
which is aimed at caring for Windermere, and as such there are structures and other 
activities in place to help sustain successful elements of this project. 
 
While our project will undertake a range of ‘reactive’ measures to clean the lakeside 
and shoreline, the information gathered through these activities will be used to 
develop knowledge and understanding of the sources, concentration and impact of 
litter, plastic and chemical pollution and shaping and informing future activities - in 
particular preventative activities. 
 
Funding will enable us to develop and train a team of volunteers who will be 
responsible for working with the project manager to coordinate shoreline litter picking 
activity.  We hope to be able to sustain this work following the conclusion of the 
funded project, with a team of trained and inspired volunteers who can continue 
elements of the work.      
 
The project will see the adoption of several ‘shoreline’ clean stations (using the 2 
Minute Beach Clean Model) around the lake shore which will be placed with the 
support of local businesses who will oversee their ongoing management and use. 

Living Wage We are committed to the fair and equitable treatment of our staff and volunteers, 
paying salaries above the living wage is an important component of this (though to 
note, all current salaries are above living wage rates).  Our board have recently 
undertaken a renumeration review and will be implementing additional increments to 
salaries in recognition of the impact of inflation and cost of living increases. Paying 
fair wages, and making expenses available to volunteers, plays an important part in 
supporting our work to increase the diversity of staff and volunteer workforce as well 
as contributing to wider social justice. 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

100 No of volunteers 3 

  

Assessors Comments 

Organisation The registered charity (no. 1174201) was set up in 2017 to support the delivery of 
the shared aims of the Lake District National Park Partnership. Based in Kendal, it 
employs four full-time and five part-time staff and has a board of 11 who include 
senior leaders from Cumbria Tourism, National Trust, LDNPA and United Utilities. 
Recent projects include Fix the Fells, Keswick to Threlkeld path restoration, Save 
Our Reds and Cleaner Lakes. It also has a small grants fund, enabled through 
programmes of visitor giving. 
 

Finances The charity is grant dependent. Accounts dated 31 March 21 show income of 
£317,921 (2020: £402,831) and expenditure of £358,213 (2020: £416,613) and 
unrestricted funds of £103,707. Grants were made and paid out in the year to 15 
different projects, totalling £165,321. Recent bank statement dated 30 May shows a 
balance of £263,097. 
 

Need & Demand Windermere is England's largest lake and is a nationally important place for wildlife 
and is also a valued space for recreation, relaxation and wellbeing attracting 
thousands of visitors each year. There have been concerns raised over water quality 
and the charity launched a 'Cleaner Lakes' campaign. Worries over the health of the 
lake are in part, down to algal bloom and bacterial pollutants which can potentially 
harm wildlife and animals. The average annual surface temperature of the lake has 
increased over the last 70 years by 1.7 degrees, which has increased the algal 
blooms, which can consume oxygen, block sunlight and ultimately kill fish, 

38



invertebrates and fish spawn. Sewage adds phosphorus into the water, which acts 
as a fertiliser for algae. This pollutant is coming from a number of sources, including 
storm overflow systems and household products - there are estimated 1,900 private 
septic tanks around Windermere, according to data collected from United Utilities. 
 

Project Running over 12 months, this project will raise awareness of the issues with the 
wider public, run engagement events with the community and volunteers, including 
litter picking and research the types of pollution to develop more targeted activity. 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

It expects to engage with 100 people. Quotes have been provided. Includes 
overhead costs at 15% of salary costs - CCF would usually award no more than 10% 
of full funding request. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

Water quality is identified as the main issue faced in Windermere and this project 
supports direct delivery of an action within in the Catchment Plan: tackling diffuse 
pollution across the Windermere catchment. It also supports a range of other 
projects named in the Catchment Plan that are currently taking place, as well as 
supporting and implementing the Cumbria Local Nature Recovery Strategy. 

Impact This project will address water quality issues and address public perception by 
engaging communities with activities through volunteering days. The practical action 
will ensure that the lake can stay clean and safe for everyone to enjoy. 
 

Safeguarding Two-page Safeguarding Policy received dated April 2020 and states it is reviewed 
annually. Does not include definition or types of abuse. The DSL is named with 
contact details, there is no named trustee with safeguarding responsibility. 
Recruitment just states applicants are DBS checked. Training states new staff 
complete an e-learning module with Cumbria LSCB but no other details. Reporting 
procedures missing. No links to national or local agencies. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

This application will be going to other of our funds to help towards the project costs 

Conditions Conditional to updated safeguarding policy. 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of grant 
applications 

5 
 

No. of approved 
grants 

3 Total Amount 
Awarded 

£38300.00 

 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Grant Application  
 

Application Details 

Fund Holehird Trust Fund Grants Officer Ellen Clements 

Organisation Kendal & District Parkinson's 
Support Group 

Application No  23871 

Aims of the 
group 

 

Post Town 
 

Kendal District South Lakeland 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

4 Good Health & Wellbeing 

   

Funding Request 

Project Cost Total requested Amount recommended 

£4,532.00 £500.00 £500.00 

 

Expenditure 

Volunteer costs:  
volunteer costs are only any incurred expenses 
 
Operational costs: £500.00 
exercise class and room hire 
 

  

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£261.00  

Applying 
Elsewhere 

No  

 

Project Details 

Project title Subsided exercise groups and lunches 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

3 x exercise groups per week and lunches 1 per month. Occasional demonstrations 
or talks.  
To take forward the exercise groups as we have to pay for room hire and trainers 
services. Also lunches and venues. 
I forgot to mention Peter Raven a trained psychotherapist offers help for cares which 
we subsidize 

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

The RGM exercise keeps the brain active for people with Parkinson's. The Alexander 
Technique helps with posture and the Dance movement class by Daphne Cushnie a 
trained Physiotherapist for Parkinson's helps people enormously. The lunches are an 
important social activity. 

No of 
beneficiaries 

30 No of volunteers 4 

  

Assessors Comments 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Volunteer led self help group who meet in Kendal.  They are looking for funding to 
help towards the cost of exercise classes 3 times a week and lunch once a month.  
They have to hire the hall and pay instructors for the exercise classes. 
This is the first time they have applied for funding and were unsure of what was 
required. 

41



They have their own bank account but no other documentation.  They applied on the 
£500 or less application form. 
This is a new committee as the previous volunteer were unable to continue.  They 
have 4 committee members and pay for a trained psychotherapist who offers help for 
cares which they subsidise. Bank account shows that their main expenditure is to 
buy in expertise of exercise instructors and psychotherapist. 
Spoke to Beryl the applicant and we will take the application forward with only the 
bank account as it is only a small amount. I have explained what a constitution is and 
accounts and why they would be better with a safeguarding policy and directed her 
to Cumbria CVS for advice and guidance on setting up these documents. She did not 
realise she would need to put these in place. I explained that she would need them if 
they applied again to us or other funders. 
Recommend support of £500 to get them going. 
 

Conditions  

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of grant 
applications 

1 
 

No. of approved 
grants 

0 Total Amount 
Awarded 

£0.00 

 

42



Grant Application  
 

Application Details 

Fund Holehird Trust Fund Grants Officer Ellen Clements 

Organisation The PBC Foundation Application No  23790 

Aims of the 
group 

The PBC Foundation is the only UK organisation exclusively dedicated to providing 
support and information to those affected by Primary Biliary Cholangitis, a rare, 
progressive and autoimmune liver condition with no known cause or cure.  
 
Our aims and objectives are: 
•   To provide PBC sufferers with accurate, up-to-date information on PBC, its 
implications, and treatment, in the form of our publications, including our compendium 
‘Living with PBC’, our quarterly magazine ‘The Bear Facts’, our website and our 
recently released app 
•   To provide support to all affected by PBC – including patients, their carers, 
concerned relatives, and friends – in the form of a helpline, a regular publication, 
regional meetings within PBC sufferers’ local community, and a regional volunteer 
network throughout the UK 
•   To educate medical practitioners about PBC, and to raise awareness of the 
services we provide, by distributing detailed information on PBC at medical events 
throughout the country, and by conducting extensive outreach work 
•   To support research into PBC to find a cause/cure 

Post Town 
 

EDINBURGH District City of Edinburgh 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

4 Good Health & Wellbeing 

   

Funding Request 

Project Cost Total requested Amount recommended 

£607.60 £607.60 £607.60 

 

Expenditure 

 
Operational costs: £607.60 
Description Cost (£) 
Production per issue £3.14 
Printing per issue £0.56 
Distribution per issue £1.20 
Total per issue £4.90 
4 copies per registered service user, per annum
 £19.60 
Total 4 copies per 31 registered service users, per 
annum £607.60 
 

  

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£0.00 n/a 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

No  

Quotes 
Received 

No 

 

Project Details 

Project title Bear Facts magazine 

What would you directly benefit 31 people who live in the area and who suffer from PBC. Help provide 43



like to do with 
your grant? 

registered service users with a year’s supply of the magazine, delivered to their door 
and access to all our core services free of charge. Magazine – vital for those affected 
by PBC – is very much a reader-led publication. Includes letters from members 
sharing experiences and coping strategies, case studies, and volunteer updates and 
local activities. Includes a ‘PBC Clinic’, where medical advisors write updates on 
treatments, symptoms, and the results of medical research into finding a cause/ cure 
for the condition. As with all of our services, 'The Bear Facts' is distributed free of 
charge, as we strongly believe that PBC sufferers should not have to pay for 
resources on their condition. Equipping readers with accurate, up-to-date information 
about PBC, our magazine enables patients to better recognise and respond to their 
own needs, take an active role in their own care, deal with any negative emotions, 
regain a sense of control. Will lead to an improved quality of life for sufferers &thus 
have a positive, lasting effect on the PBC sufferer& their support circle. Feedback 
highlights the enormous difference our magazine makes in reducing the isolation felt 
by many, by fostering a sense of local community, bringing people closer together. 
Magazine are vital for members who do not have computers or are unable to use 
technology. Many with PBC also suffer Sjogren’s syndrome, affects the eyesight 
&makes reading from a screen extremely difficult 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

Member in the local area register for our services and pro-actively use our services. 
We actively welcome feedback to shape all our services. Feedback from our service 
users: 
•  ‘I would like to thank you very much. I can’t tell you enough how much I am 
grateful to you because I couldn’t cope without your information and support' 
• “Thanks to research I found via Bear Facts I recently got a second opinion 
from Mass General Hospital which made me feel more confident about my prognosis 
and treatment” 
• “I was a bit hesitant to join the 2pm and 4pm sessions at first but am so glad 
that I did. I have learnt so much about PBC in the last few weeks than I have in the 
last 19 years.” 
• “These sessions are invaluable not only in the present climate when people 
maybe feeling lonely and worried that appointments have been delayed. It’s 
imperative that these sessions are continued on a permanent basis for the health 
and wellbeing of all PBC patients.” 

How has the 
COVID-19 
pandemic affected 
the way you now 
currently support 
your beneficiaries? 

The increase in demand for our Patient facing activities has been greater in the last 
two years than ever before. We strive to provide the most up to date accurate 
information to all our members and their support network of family and friends. To 
deal with this demand, we are providing increased services via our helpline and 
social media platforms. 
Our current range of services including our publications, helpline, volunteer network, 
Mobile App and workshops are essential for enabling people affected by PBC to be 
supported for life.  
What has come to the fore, from patients’ comments, is that they need help to break 
their isolation, their feelings of hopelessness and helplessness. To this end, we have 
restructured and are providing a number of new digital services to our service users. 
Digital services include; 
• Webinars (Every Tuesday and Thursday) Medical Professionals guest 
speakers. 
• Informal online coffee and a chit-chat (Mon & Wed 4pm UK time) 
  

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

Despite breakthroughs in the treatment of PBC over the last decade, many sufferers 
are still not receiving any support. Persistent ignorance of PBC amongst the medical 
profession means that, all too often, GP’s have little information to give to PBC 
sufferers about how to cope with their condition. Patients are left to fend for 
themselves, seeking out whatever information they can find from sources such as 
the internet, and often encountering distressing misinformation as a result. Having 
never before heard of PBC and knowing no one else with the disease, sufferers often 
feel frightened, isolated, and vulnerable.  This lack of information and assistance 
drove our Chief Executive Collette Thain MBE – a PBC sufferer herself – to establish 
the Foundation in 1996. Unlike better known liver conditions, PBC, which causes the 
relentlessly progressive destruction of the bile ducts in the liver, is completely 
unrelated to alcohol or substance abuse. When a person suffers from PBC, the 

44



body’s immune system attacks the cells lining the bile ducts within the liver as if they 
are foreign to the body. This results in poor drainage of bile acids, which causes 
widespread damage to the liver, and leads to advanced scarring known as ‘cirrhosis’. 
Cirrhosis can impair the liver’s ability to function to the point that quality of life 
deteriorates dramatically, and a transplant is urgently required. However, PBC recurs 
in a transplanted liver – thus, transplantation should be considered a ‘swap’ rather 
than a ‘cure’, hence why our services are set up to support our registered service 
users for life.  
 

Partnership 
working 

n/a 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

Your funding will therefore help PBC sufferers to: 
• feel less isolated, through increased involvement and interaction within their 
communities 
• be better able to self-manage their condition, which will lead to an improved  
quality of life 
• to have a better chance of living longer and healthier lives 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

We actively welcome and encourage feedback through our helpline, social media 
channels and local volunteers We survey all members annually We survey members 
before and after if they attend a workshop Members are asked to share what they 
would like to see in the magazine or questions they would like medical professionals 
to answer. Our digital services are very interactive, and members led We also survey 
on a number of topics through our app 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

ongoing 
 
We listen to all feedback and it helps us to shape, adapt and create al our services to 
best met members needs 

Living Wage n/a 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

31 No of volunteers 50 

  

Assessors Comments 

Organisation The charity (no. SC025619) was established in 1996 and is the only organisation in 
the UK exclusively dedicated to providing support and information to those affected 
by PBC. 
 

Finances The accounts provided are for PBC UK the national organisation.  
Income is £384,325 and expenditure £325,572. 
 

Need & Demand primary biliary cholangitis (pbc) which is a life changing diagnosis. pbc is a chronic 
illness which is relatively rare but has a dramatic impact on an individual and how 
that person lives their life. 
 
Feedback from their previous award from a member said:- 
 You lose your drive for life, you feel isolated, depressed, and acquire a whole host of 
side effects which literally change the person you once were. 
 
The pbc foundation is a remarkable organisation led by remarkable people and have 
quite simply ‘changed the face’ of this chronic illness. In a relatively short time, it has 
become a worldwide asset, knowledge hub and help centre for sufferers. 
. The ‘foundation’ is the ‘go to place’. Of monumental help is ‘Bear Facts’ the journal 
that quite simply ‘connect’ sufferers to each other, medical experts and help hubs 
countrywide. The webinars are amazing and cover so many aspects including 
updating sufferers on worldwide initiatives and trials to new treatments and quite 
simply enhance quality of life. The staff are amazing, and Collette the CEO puts out 
monthly VLOGS and always reaches out to sufferers and offers unlimited help and 
support. 45



 

Project Funding requested to produce their newsletter. 31 beneficiaries receiving 4 copies 
each per year 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

Small amount of funding which will support people with this disability 
 

Impact Each 20-page newsletter costs to produce and issue, however it is emailed where 
possible and is available on their website - 
http://www.pbcfoundation.org.uk/Newsletter.htm, or they could send it.  
 
The newsletter includes medical articles written by PBC specialists from the charities 
medical advisory board, members’ tips on symptom management as well as 
information on the latest PBC Foundation news.   
They also provide webinars over the internet for members to attend. 
 

Safeguarding Policy requested 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Organisation is mainly grant funded. 
 
They have a Cumbrian contact and the people with this condition need the 
information,   
Recommend support but the funding can only be used to support people in the 
Westmorland area. 
 
Priority - People with a disability 
Charitable objectives - To provide the services to beneficiaries 
 

Conditions Conditional on receiving a satisfactory safeguarding policy 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of grant 
applications 

15 
 

No. of approved 
grants 

7 Total Amount 
Awarded 

£3368.90 

 

46



Grant Application  
 

Application Details 

Fund Holehird Trust Fund Grants Officer Ellen Clements 

Organisation Heron Corn Mill (Beetham) 
Limited 

Application No  23912 

Aims of the 
group 

Heron Corn Mill (Beetham) Ltd is a Living Heritage Site, and a Registered Charity 
(1131677) and Limited Company by guarantee. It administers and operates an 
industrial heritage site comprising of a Grade II* listed working watermill, producing 
specialist flours, and a community barn, re-imagined as an educational, arts and rural 
workspace. A year-round education programme and events programme take places 
for all sectors of the community. The organization has been in existence since 1974 
and has developed extensively over the decades. The site now also houses a 100kW 
hydropower Kaplan turbine, producing green energy, situated on the weir of the river 
Bela, on which the mill stands. This provides our only core income, and means the site 
is off grid. With several well-established educational projects for the elderly, children, 
teenagers and community baking groups, plus visiting school, college and university 
groups, Heron Corn Mill has become an exemplary model of good practice and 
sustainability. 

Post Town 
 

MILNTHORPE District South Lakeland 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

4 Good Health & Wellbeing 

   

Funding Request 

Project Cost Total requested Amount recommended 

£6,700.00 £6,700.00 £2,000.00 

 

Expenditure 

Staff costs: £4,400.00 
Professional fees for 2 artist/bakers to work with the 
group over 12 months. 
 
Publicity costs: £400.00 
Documentation of the project, reports, photos film 

 

Office, Overhead, Premises Costs: £500.00 
Project management to set up and oversee the 
project. 
 
Capital costs: £1,400.00 
Materials and ingredients needed to run the project 
over 12 months 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£0.00 n/a 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

No Will apply to other trusts, at point of application have not yet 
completed this 

 

Project Details 

Project title Food for Thought 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

We'd like to deliver a series of 12 intentional workshop days with older members of 
our youth group Mill Hoppers  (13-16 years) the purpose of which is to allow them to: 
1. learn new cooking and baking skills 
2. talk to each other and to the artists/bakers running the session 
3. Learn new social skills, cook and eat together, including setting up and clearing 
up! 
The 12 sessions will run from10am - 3pm, the young people deciding menus, 
cooking and eating together and then taking home their baked goods. The purpose is 
to allow them time to talk, as some of our young people have experienced difficult 
times since Covid-19, some losing best friends, others moving school or struggling 
with family issues. Ours is a safe space with artists and tutors the young people 47



know and have known for years, who are professionals. 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

Now that our face-to-face sessions at the mill have resumed post Covid-19, we are 
hearing from the young people about issues with identity, sexuality, loneliness, 
trauma which need to be addressed. In coming to the clubs, they get some time to 
talk at lunch, but usually our sessions are themed and run to a timescale. We want to 
create something much more fluid, and which encourages conversation. We have 
come to this through talking to the young people face to face at our Mill Hopper 
sessions. 

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

Our community, the teenagers, are disadvantaged because in the rural villages 
where they live (Sedgwick, Holme, Hale etc.,) there is no public transport system for 
them to access such activity as we provide. They rely on parents to bring them to us. 
The issues they face and have been facing since Covid-19 outbreak is the loss of 
friends, due to school changes, unable to access out of school hours clubs like ours 
(except online) and growing up issues in general with no one to chat to. Some of the 
young people have learning difficulties, and some of them have lost friends to 
disease. We are noticing a greater need for them to connect and talk to people about 
their concerns, to help them develop ideas and signpost them to other agencies or 
organisations.  
 

Partnership 
working 

Not in its delivery, but we will signpost the young people on to other organisations or 
groups that we feel might benefit them. We have connections with other groups such 
as Space 2 Create in Kendal and Growing Well at Sizergh. We will also encourage 
the young people to become more involved at the mill if they wish to develop their 
interests there. 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

The benefits of this project are that young people will access new skills in the area of 
cooking, baking and domestic skills. They will also deepen their friendships at a time 
when most of them are struggling with various issues in their lives. Outcomes 
expected would be: 
1. 72 young people aged between 13 and 16 years would learn new domestic and 
cooking skills. It is known that baking bread in particular has therapeutic qualities and 
should be encouraged to alleviate stress and improve mood. 
2. 72 young people would improve their social skills 
3. 72 young people would develop and deepen their friendships with each other 
outside of a school environment 
4. 72 young people would be given the opportunity of continuing this project after it 
ends, by running the group themselves with minimum supervision. 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

We will provide a feedback form at each session, allowing each young person the 
opportunity to explain the benefits that hopefully this project will bring them, they can 
voice their opinion on how we can develop and/or improve what we offer. From this 
we can steer the project in a way that works best for them. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

I see the project continuing with minimal supervision past the length of the project, 
with young people being in control of their own session more fully. It would be good if 
from this could come a new bread group leader (or two) solely for the young people 
who meet at Mill Hoppers club, and the project could continue led by the young 
people themselves. 

Living Wage We will pay the artists/bakers who will lead these sessions at the rate we usually pay 
which is £200 per day. 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

72 No of volunteers 10 

  

Assessors Comments 

Organisation Registered charity (no. 1131677) which has restored the corn mill at Beetham. It 
employs 2 full-time and 6 part-time members of staff with 18 volunteers who help run 48



events as well as manage the milling, fundraising, baking bread and managing the 
sale of items 
 

Finances Accounts dated 31/12/2021 show an income of £281k and expenditure £199k 
 

Need & Demand The young people are disadvantaged because the Covid-19 period has left them with 
issues due to loneliness, and some of the older ones appear depressed. Some have 
lost friends due to illness. They express the need to talk. 
 

Project Once the project starts, they will have opportunities to develop their own healthy 
menus, and cook lunch for each other, and eat together. In the afternoons they will 
learn to make artisan bread from our own milled flour. 
Providing 10 sessions throughout the 12-month period. 
 10 sessions with the above adjustment, and 1 each month, but lasting all day. Each 
child would have up to 3 sessions. 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

Original amount requested is a large amount for our funds. 
Contacted them and they could par down the project and could run fewer sessions. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

They provided online activities during COVID-19 such as cook along sessions, digital 
youth workshops, at home craft through patterns provided and general phone calls to 
support wellbeing. 

Impact The Mill Hoppers Group where young people learn STEM subjects has grown to 100 
members. Crafter noons, for the elderly learning traditional crafts is well attended 
each month, and Bread of Heron has grown now to 4 groups, led by volunteers. A 
large number of people attend Bread of Heron to learn how to bake artisan bread 
using the flour made in the mill. Schools and local history groups also attend 
throughout the year. 
 

Safeguarding Safeguarding policy to be updated to include contact details and dated. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

If we could only give a contribution to the costs, they said they could probably make 
this work on £2000 
Recommend a contribution 
 

Conditions Updated safeguarding policy 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of grant 
applications 

25 
 

No. of approved 
grants 

22 Total Amount 
Awarded 

£53593.36 

 

49



This page is intentionally left blank



Grant Application  
 

Application Details 

Fund Holehird Trust Fund Grants Officer Ellen Clements 

Organisation Kendal Windows on Art (KWoA) Application No  23875 

Aims of the 
group 

KWoA began as a not for profit organisation, achieving charity status in 2003 and is 
run by its Trustee and Management Committee. Over the last 25 years, KWoA has 
successfully run regular programmes of arts activities and events in Cumbria. 
One of the main aims of KWoA is to provide educational and cultural opportunities in 
the sphere of the arts. Whilst continuing to develop a diverse range of thought-
provoking artworks to share with the public, KWoA is keen to improve community 
access and engagement with creating and sharing relevant and innovative creative 
work through artist led workshops. KWoA provides a rolling programme of creative 
community projects and this flexibility helps KWoA to respond to the specific needs of 
community groups, young people, children and showcasing / collaborating 
organisations. 
KWoA was awarded two London 2012 Inspire Marks for their work with young people 
and volunteers and their work was part of the Northwest Cultural Olympiad. Due to the 
success of their intergenerational projects in Cumbria, a KWoA representative was 
invited to meet HRH Prince Charles on his visit to Bowness. 

Post Town 
 

KENDAL District South Lakeland 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

5 Sustainable Cities & Communities 

   

Funding Request 

Project Cost Total requested Amount recommended 

£3,375.00 £2,375.00 £2,375.00 

 

Expenditure 

Capital costs: £2,375.00 
£1800 ie 18 half day creative workshops @ £100 
per workshop 
£400 workshop art resources 
£175 contribution to Public Liability Insurance 

 

Publicity costs: £0.00 
£1000 Exhibition costs including putting up and 
monitoring multi-site displays, printing costs etc 
 
 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£1,000.00 Kendal Town Council £500 awarded, Kendal and District 
Lions £500 awarded 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

No - 

Quotes 
Received 

No 

 

Project Details 

Project title Small Steps - Making Connections 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

A grant would support project costs for the KWoA ‘Small Steps: Making Connections’ 
intergenerational project which plans to run a series of creative workshops and 
displays/exhibitions across a range of Kendal venues. This creative project aims to 
rebuild the self-confidence of children in the Kendal community, which through our 
research locally has been noted to be greatly diminished following the impact of 
Covid lockdowns and restrictions. This will be through exploring ways of sharing 
what matters to each child participant through creative writing and art activities 
supported by KWoA creative facilitators so the children can then share their interests 

51



and creativity with local older neighbours. The project also aims to rebuild the self 
confidence of the children’s older neighbours especially those who have been 
anxious about returned to social activities following the covid lockdowns and 
restrictions.  
 
An important element of the project is that the children and their older neighbours will 
be encouraged to take an active role in decision making throughout the project, 
reflecting on the ‘what matters to me’ approach of responding to individuals’ needs 
and interests. 
 
Venues include Dean Gibson school community space, Holy Trinity and St George’s 
community space, Kendal Library and Stonecross Care Home. Work will also be 
shared with local older people’s groups through our KWoA network links with care 
home activities coordinators, Age UK South Lakeland, Mothers Union Group 
contacts etc ensuring that we follow current Covid safe guidelines for engaging with 
older people eg in person or digitally etc. 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

KWoA is in regular contact with their community network of groups and individuals. 
These conversations became even more important since the covid lockdowns and 
restrictions when they were keen to discuss their specific needs with KWoA: 
 
Discussions with families and children have led to families and children’s 
groups/organisations explaining they want opportunities to raise the children’s self-
confidence. They have particularly noticed in the children (under 11 years), following 
lockdowns/restrictions, lack of confidence in speaking out loud in front of their peers, 
loss of communication skills with peers, ‘shyness in sharing’ individual opinions, 
being withdrawn in group discussions and drop in speaking and listening skills. There 
are concerned about this change and actively want to find ways to encourage the 
children’s confidence to grow and would welcome KWoA’s facilitating  
support. 
 
Discussions with older people groups/organisations and individuals including 
Mothers Union members etc also highlighted an interest in reaching older community 
members who, post-covid, have lost confidence in going out, leaving their homes etc. 
The older people groups are keen to welcome them back to face-to-face community 
activities. 
 
In addition to the self-confidence challenges faced by the different generations, they 
have also missed engaging with different age groups in their community. For many 
years KWoA has run successful intergenerational projects and having paused our 
intergenerational events during Covid Lockdowns and restrictions etc our local 
networks of Kendal children’s groups, families, older people and older people 
organisations are asking us to find ways to build a new intergenerational project as 
they have missed connecting through the generations. 

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

2 years of Covid lockdowns and restrictions have had a huge impact on the young 
children in the Kendal community eg 2 years is a quarter of an 8 year olds life 
experience and half of a 4 year olds. During an important recent stage of their 
development, they were socially isolated at home not seeing their peers or other 
adults outside their immediate family. This has led to lack of confidence in speaking 
out loud in front of their peers, loss of communication skills with peers, ‘shyness in 
sharing’ individual opinions, being withdrawn in group discussions and drop in 
speaking and listening skills. 
 
The impact of Covid lockdowns and restrictions on older people in Kendal has also 
led to a loss of self-confidence. Whilst there is currently slightly less anxiety about 
catching Covid for many older people there is an increase in a fear of falling, 
wariness of social engagement etc due to prolonged period of staying at home and 
not going out for 2 years. This has led to many older people feeling socially isolated 
even through restrictions are currently lifted. 
 
KWoA has been unable to run its regular programme of intergenerational projects 
during the Covid lockdowns and restrictions but now our local networks of Kendal 
children’s groups, families, older people and older people organisations are asking 52



us to find ways to build a new intergenerational project as they have missed 
connecting through the generations.  
 

Partnership 
working 

KWoA values the support of local organisations eg SASL, Age UK South Lakeland 
when publishing project activities which helps improve access and strengthens 
community networks. 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

For many years KWoA has run successful intergenerational projects and having 
paused our intergenerational events during Covid Lockdowns and restrictions etc our 
local networks of Kendal children’s groups, families, older people and older people 
organisations are asking us to find ways to build a new intergenerational project as 
they have missed connecting through the generations. This project will help show 
that they are being listened to whilst helping to make new intergenerational 
connections. 
 
The opportunities provided by the series of KWoA ‘Small Steps: Making 
Connections’ creative workshops supported by KWoA creative facilitators will 
encourage the children’s self-confidence to grow again as they share their interests 
and creativity with their peers and with local older people.  
 
The older people will benefit from experiencing the children’s enthusiasm in being 
able to express what matters to them which will make the older people feel more 
connected with their younger neighbours. This will help older people who have felt 
socially isolated to gain confidence in engaging with community social activities. 
 
This intergenerational project will also enable grandparents who don’t live near their 
grandchildren and vice versa to enjoy developing a creative dialogue across the 
generations locally.  
 
The creative work created by the children inspired by them sharing their interests 
with their older neighbours will be showcased with the wider audiences at a range of 
Kendal venues and online blog.  In addition to participants being encouraged to take 
an active role in decision making throughout the project, this will help all participants 
young and old to feel valued in their community. 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

KWoA understand and value the importance of evaluation, not just at the end of a 
project but as an ongoing process throughout activities. This helps us to identify and 
meet community members' needs through flexible, responsive planning and delivery. 
We are working closely with communities to ensure our invitation to participate 
reaches their communities effectively and participant engagement figures will be 
noted for all activities.  
We will be recording initial baseline of responses at the project start to measure 
against when we review project with participants at project end. We are keen to track 
how aims have been met, note participants' changes and sustainable community 
development etc. This will help us evaluate the impact of project activities and all 
findings will be collated in our KWoA project report to be sent to all funders following 
the end of project evaluation. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

KWoA will be supporting their creative facilitators/artists and volunteers as they 
engage with participants in project activities, strengthening connections across their 
community as part of the sustainability planning that KWoA builds into all their 
projects. We will be encouraging participants to take an active role in decision 
making throughout activities - helping with the design, development, delivery and 
evaluation of the project to encourage participants' 'ownership' of the project. We will 
also discuss how the community links built through the project can be developed in 
the future and support community planning discussions after the project has been 
completed.  
Sustainability planning is embedded throughout the project not just at the end of the 
project so that participants can actively be involved in considering how the work 
continues after the grant and awareness can be heightened through opportunities 
regarding fundraising, grant applications etc supported by KWoA discussions.  
Through Small Steps Making Connections project we hope to strengthen 
intergenerational links in local networks which will help in discussing the needs of the 

53



different generations when considering new community collaborations. 

Living Wage N/A 
We do not have staff costs but our freelance creative facilitators/artists rate of pay is 
£25 per hour or £200 per day. 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

180 No of volunteers 14 

  

Assessors Comments 

Organisation Established in 1997, the registered charity (no. 1097912) has previously delivered a 
series of intergenerational creative workshops and events in the Kirkbarrow area of 
Kendal, as well as across other parts of South Lakeland. They do not have paid staff 
and run using volunteers and buy in artists and their expertise.  They work with all 
age groups and have provided intergeneration projects working with schools and 
older people. 
 

Finances Accounts ending 31 Jan 2021 show an income of £6,950 and expenditure of £8,612 
Recent banking shows £1,478.00. 
 

Need & Demand They are planning to start the workshop activities with older people and the children 
both exploring speaking, listening and creative writing activities about 'what matters 
to me', as a start to valuing individual contributions and rebuilding self-confidence. 
This will then inspire 2D work including drawing, painting and printing and 
combinations of these using a mixed media approach. The exhibitions/displays will 
show this wide range of 2D work but also it may be developed into 3D installations at 
the Dean Gibson community space and Kendal Library as they both have overhead 
areas with anchor points as well as wall space and floor standing space. The 
participants actively plan how the work will be displayed/installed in the venues 
during the project 
 

Project Intergenerational workshops, exhibitions and creative workshops. 
Venues include Dean Gibson school community space, Holy Trinity and St George’s 
community space, Kendal Library and Stonecross Care Home. Work will also be 
shared with local older people’s groups through our KWoA network links with care 
home activities coordinators, Age UK South Lakeland, Mothers Union Group 
contacts etc ensuring that we follow current Covid safe guidelines for engaging with 
older people eg in person or digitally 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

Costs requested for the cost of running these projects. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

The group work on a project-by-project basis depending on the funding they are able 
to source. They have been asked to consider showing project work at Printfest 
national print exhibition in Ulverston. 

Impact The project activities for children’s participants are all extra-curricular and they will be 
encouraging participation though their contacts with several Kendal 
areas/communities. Their communication network with local schools is greatly 
appreciated as they are always very helpful in sharing news of project activities to 
help KWoA encourage project engagement. 
 
Dean Gibson Primary School has offered the community space as a base for some 
of the project workshops and exhibitions/displays. The project activities in this space 
are all extra-curricular and will be promoted through the Dean Gibson school 
community network inviting children and their families to participate. This venue is 
convenient for intergenerational work with Stonecross Care Home - the two venues 
are near enough for children to walk to Stonecross Care Home and Care Home 
residents able to travel to come to the Dean Gibson community space by transport 
but with only a short journey, maximising accessibility. They can also promote 
activities for children in walking distance to Dean Gibson community space by 
sharing the project engagement invite through their KWoA network links with families 
at Vicarage Park, Ghyllside/Kirkbarrow, Heron Hill communities. Their community 
links including through school communities with Hallgarth and Stramongate areas 54



could support encouragement of further participation for children and families at 
Kendal Library which is in walking distance of these areas. 
 

Safeguarding Report is dated 2007 so should be updated and reviewed on an annual basis. 
No contact details or name for administrator who deals with safeguarding. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Recommend support 
 

Conditions Conditional on updated safeguarding policy 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of grant 
applications 

30 
 

No. of approved 
grants 

24 Total Amount 
Awarded 

£49925.00 

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



Grants Application – Multi Fund 
 

Applicant Details 

Organisation 
Western Dales Community 
Bus Service Limited 

Application No  
23713 

Aims of the 
group 

The Company’s objectives are  to provide a community bus service, including private 
hire, for the inhabitants of Sedbergh, Kirkby Stephen and surrounding areas in 
Cumbria who are need such a service because of age, sickness or disability (mental 
or physical), or poverty or because of a lack of availability of adequate and safe 
public bus services. 

Post Town 
 

SEDBERGH District South Lakeland 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

3 Sustainable Cities & Communities 

 

Funding Request 

 Project Cost £12,926.76  Total requested £3,000.00 

 

Funding Recommendation 

Fund Name Recommended Grants Officer Panel Date 

Out of Eden Fund £1,500.00 Ellen Clements 19/07/2022 

Holehird Trust Fund £1,500.00 Ellen Clements 20/09/2022 

Total amount recommended £3,000.00   

   

Expenditure 

Staff costs: £3,000.00 
Salary £12600.00 
Pension £190.80 

 

 
Other costs: £135.96 
Annual mobile phone cost 

Quotes 
Received 

No 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£0.00 0 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

Yes 10,000.00 from Frida Scott Charitable Trust 

 

Project Details 

Project title Operations Manager salary costs 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

We are seeking a contribution towards 12 months' employment costs of our part-time 
(18 hours per week) Operations Manager. We operate within Cumbria, with both a 
Cumbrian registered address and a local board of Trustees. 
The Operations Manager post was created in 2020 when the demands of the role 
became too great for our volunteers to carry out and is the only paid role in the 
charity. It is vital for the running of our bus services, as it involves managing 25 
volunteers and five scheduled bus services; scheduling vehicle servicing and 
maintenance and creating monthly drivers’ rotas; organising driver training and 
administering private hire bookings; publicising the services, reviewing timetables 
and registering changes. We are not able to meet the total cost of this post ourselves 
at present as our income has still not recovered from the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic and is unlikely to do so for at least the next two years. A contribution 
towards these employment costs will ensure that we can keep the post, which in turn 

57



will mean that we can also keep our services running, and thus enable some of the 
more isolated and vulnerable people in our rural community to maintain their 
independence. A further benefit of financial support for this post is that the part-time 
employment opportunity it provides in this rural area will continue. 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 
project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

We have several ways of determining whether what we offer is wanted by people in 
the community. The most obvious indicator of the need for our service is the number 
of people who travel on the bus. When we started in 2012, our passengers were 
making around 2,500 journeys each year; in 2019, just before the COVID-19 
pandemic, they were making nearly 6,000.  
 
We are fortunate that we are able to get to know our passengers well, as our drivers 
meet them every time they take the bus out and are able to build up relationships 
with them. The feedback we get from this source, though informal, has been 
overwhelmingly positive since we started and has contributed to our decision making. 
We captured this data more formally in a questionnaire in 2019, when 83% of those 
asked said they thought the quality of their life would suffer if we did not run our 
services. We have another questionnaire planned for the summer of 2022.  
 
We also make use of our relationships with both the county council and with local 
parish and town councils, who tell us when they think there is a need in their area 
which we might meet. Our most popular services started in that way, and the 
relationship with the councils enables us to discuss with them the implications of any 
changes in demand as they occur. 

How has the 
COVID-19 
pandemic 
affected the way 
you now 
currently 
support your 
beneficiaries? 

During the Covid 19 pandemic we had to suspend our services completely for 39 
weeks in order to comply with government guidance.  Although we had no fuel costs, 
we still had to maintain our buses in full working order with appropriate MOTs and 
safety checks.  In addition, we had to spend money on making the buses as safe as 
possible for both passengers and drivers, installing Perspex screens, cashless ticket 
payments and equipping each bus with disinfecting equipment. When we restarted, 
social distancing meant we could only carry a maximum of 6 passengers on these 16 
seat minibuses until all restrictions were lifted.  As a result, the total annual number of 
passenger journeys dropped from nearly 6,000 at its highest point before the 
pandemic to 1,500 in 2021.   Since restrictions were removed, these numbers have 
slowly increased but are still only at around 80% of pre-pandemic numbers. Although 
we expect them to continue recover, it could take another two years before they 
return to where they were.  As fares are the main source of our income, as long as 
this continues it will prevent us from fully covering our running costs. 
  

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

Although all our services are available to anyone who wants to use them, in practice 
we know that a large number of the passenger journeys are made by specific 
sections of the populations of Sedbergh, Kirkby Stephen and surrounding areas, who 
use the bus as a way of overcoming their rural isolation. Many of them are 
vulnerable, with no alternative transport options. A passenger survey we conducted 
in October 2019 found that: 
•27% of respondents have a disability 
•89% are over 60 
No longer being able to travel independently after having led an active life can have a 
major impact on people’s wellbeing, and our bus services address this need. 
 
Isolated rural communities such as ours need strong community links to survive, and 
our charity helps to forge them. In 2019, we also surveyed our volunteers, and asked 
them if they were more involved in their community as a result volunteering for WDB. 
94% said that they were, and comments made by two of those surveyed sum this up: 
•“I have met new people and made more friends” 
•“Having only moved into the area three years ago, volunteering has helped me to 
get to know the people in the community and to become known by them”  
 

Partnership 
working 

N/A 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 

This grant‘s main outcome will be to help our organisation fully recover from the 
Covid pandemic. This will enable us to continue to mitigate social isolation in south-

58



outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

east Cumbria by providing bus services that are adequately and safely managed. We 
started doing this after 2012, when Cumbria County Council removed its subsidies 
from all bus services in the county. Since then, we have taken over three services 
that otherwise would have been withdrawn by the commercial operator and 
developed two new ones. The result has been that these services continue to be 
used by a variety of people each week, including pensioners, young people and 
those connecting with trains, giving them independent access to Kendal and Penrith, 
their nearest service centres. As well as providing transport from the larger 
settlements in the area such as Sedbergh and Kirkby Stephen, our bus routes also 
serve smaller and more isolated places such as Dent, Garsdale, Brough, Warcop, 
Ravenstonedale and Newbiggin, as well as connecting with trains at Kirkby Stephen, 
Dent Station and Oxenholme. Having secure funding for our Operations Manager 
until our income recovers after Covid will enable us to continue to achieve these 
outcomes. 
 
A second outcome of the grant will be the effect that we have on social cohesion 
within Cumbria. Almost all our 20 volunteers live within the communities they serve, 
and many of them have used volunteering with us to help them make contacts and 
friendships within other volunteers and with our passengers.  Several of our 
volunteers started with us when they moved here and found it to be a good way to 
quickly contribute to and become settled in their new community. 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

We have procedures in place to monitor the work and effectiveness of the Operations 
Manager. The Chair of trustees is her line manager, who regularly discusses her 
work with her and monitors its impact. She has a detailed job description, and after 
her first year in the post views on her performance were sought from other volunteers 
before her performance was assessed and discussed with her in a performance 
management review, at which targets were agreed with her and set for the next 
twelve months. These will be monitored by her line manager during the year and 
assessed in her next performance review, where new targets will be set for the 
following year. At the end of the process, the Trustees will be informed about whether 
or not has been completed satisfactorily. 
We will also continue to monitor and evaluate all our services through the information 
we collect each day from our ticket sales. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

We do not anticipate any drop in need for our services for the foreseeable future, but 
we know that the immediate economic outlook is bleak. While we hope that this 
funding will enable us to break even again after 12 months, so that we can fund the 
employment costs of the Operations Manager out of our income, we know that it is 
possible that other factors such as increases in fuel prices, maintenance charges and 
spare parts are likely to adversely affect our finances.  While we could increase our 
fares to cover our costs, this is not likely to help the people who rely on our services, 
so will be very reluctant to do this to any great extent.  We will therefore need to 
reassess all our income sources in the coming months and may need to look for 
further grant funding in the future. 

Living Wage N/A  We are paying a rate above the living wage, in recognition of the skills required 
to do the job. 
  

No of 
beneficiaries 

75 No of volunteers 20 

  

Assessment 

Organisation Company limited by guarantee which was founded in 2012. The was ran by 
volunteers but in 202 they employed a part time operations manager to help them 
run the bus service efficiently. 
 

Finances Accounts dated 30/06/21 show an income of £41,192 and expenditure of £32,622 
with a carry forward of £86,694.  Their bank statement dated 6/4/22 shows a balance 
of £60,285 
 

Need & Demand The organisation has 2 buses which they use around the Sedbergh and Kirkby 
Stephen and surrounding area. 
 

59



Project Funding requested for a part time Operations Manager.  They will be responsible for 
coordination of volunteers and respond to changes in relevant legislation, contractual 
arrangements, good practice and respond to an identified failing in its effectiveness. 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

They received a lottery grant to help them during COVID-19 when they could not run 
or ran with limited numbers due to social distancing.  The grant was to help them 
with loss of income. 
Garfield Weston gave them a grant of £77k in 2020 to buy a bus. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

COVID-19 impacted on the service, and they require support with the staff wage. 

Impact Transport link in a rural area. 
 

Safeguarding The organisation has a number of policies but not a lot of detail in them.  
Safeguarding officer is the Operations Manager but no contact details. Policy is 
reviewed biannually but is not dated 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

 

Recommend support 

Conditions Conditional on updated safeguarding policy 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of allocations No. of approved allocations Total Amount Awarded 

3 1 £2000.00 

 

60



Grants Application – Multi Fund 
 

Applicant Details 

Organisation 
Crosby Ravensworth Parish 
Council 

Application No  
23885 

Grants Officer 
 

Ellen Clements District Eden 

Aims of the 
group 

Parish Council - supporting un-constituted Friends of Crosby Ravensworth play area 

 

Grant Priority UNSDG 

5 Sustainable Cities & Communities 

 

Funding Request 

 Project Cost £35,570.82  Total requested £3,000.00 

 

Funding Recommendation 

Fund Name Recommended Panel Date 

Holehird Trust Fund £2,000.00 20/09/2022 

Westmorland Family Community Fund £1,000.00 20/09/2022 

Total amount recommended £3,000.00  

   

Expenditure 

  
Capital costs:  
The cost of equipment, removal and installation 
from Playdale is all in as one cost. 
 
Other costs:  
This amount is for work that needs to be done with 
taking down and replacing walls and the gate. 

Quotes 
Received 

Yes 

 

Income 

Amount of 
funding raised 
so far 

£2,500.00 Crosby Ravensworth Parish Council  £2,000, Crosby 
Ravensworth Relief in Need Charities £1,000 

Applying 
Elsewhere 

Yes £16,113 applied for from Eden District Council Playground 
Fund, £6,000 applied for from The National Lottery 

 

Project Details 

Project title Play Area Renovation 

What would you 
like to do with 
your grant? 

Replace the dilapidated equipment in the play area which was built as a millennium 
project in 2000. the equipment needs removing and disposing of. 
removal of the equipment will damage the surface, the edging stones will need 
realigning, perhaps even replacing if they are damaged in the process. a new gate is 
required, and a wall needs to be rebuilt. we also require some new benches and a 
picnic table. there is an open drain in the play area which needs updating to keep 
vermin out. we intend to plant a wildflower border adjacent to two walls. 

How do you 
know that the 
people in your 
community want 
this 

Evidence from Crosby Ravensworth community led plan produced in 2009, shows a 
desire is expressed for a wider age range of equipment. also, evidence from a 
recently produced questionnaire. 100% answered yes t the following questions: 
Do you value the play area? 
Do you agree it is need of renovation? 

61



project/activity 
and what 
evidence have 
you collected to 
demonstrate 
this? 

the paly area equipment in situ is to be replaced with more up to date equipment.  
75% agreed a wider age range of equipment is required. 
 
We have eight letters of support from the friends who formed the group. 
A letter has been received from the school and two from the local tourist 
accommodation sites. 
Also, a letter from the playgroup which closed a number of years ago but has now 
been restarted due to demand. 
Copies of these letters are included. 
 
Crosby Ravensworth is in the newly extended Yorkshire Dales National Park. 
We have a recently opened family friendly caravan/campsite in the village. There is 
also a long-established family run campsite which is expanding its capacity due to 
the popularity of staycations. We have several holiday homes in the parish and are in 
the unusual position of having a number of young families living in the village. 

Explain how the 
people or 
community 
accessing your 
services are 
disadvantaged 
and tell us about 
the issues they 
face 

As mentioned above  
 

Partnership 
working 

As mentioned above the health benefits will indirectly work alongside the health 
sector to encourage healthier lifestyles in those who use the play area on a regular 
basis. 
  

Outline the 
benefits and 
outcomes that 
you expect to 
achieve as a 
result of the 
funding 

Parents who are keen to get the play area renovated have informed us they travel 
further afield due to the dilapidated state of the equipment. Having a modern play 
area in the village will reduce the parents carbon footprint. 
It will not only serve the playgroup and village school but will attract other parents 
and families who holiday locally. Grandparents within the local community have also 
expressed an interest in improved facilities for when their family visit. 
The next nearest play area is four miles away. Crosby Ravensworth play area has 
been described as a little gem by visitors, due to its quiet, secure position and 
distance away from the passing traffic. This gives parents the confidence to let the 
children run free and unaccompanied. We are lucky enough to have had a baby 
boom in the parish over the last couple of years. Young families living in the village 
will use the facility which encourages children to get fresh air and exercise. 

How you will 
collate, measure 
and report the 
benefits you 
describe? 

We intend to get user feedback once the new equipment is installed so that we can 
measure the value of the project before we move on to phase two. This information 
will be imperative to the continuation of the project as a whole over the coming years 
to ensure all ages of children will benefit from the renovation and upgrade project we 
initially started with. 

How does the 
project/activity 
progress after 
this funding 
ends, or is it 
one-off? 

The project has been split into phases due to the increasing costs of raw materials, 
therefore fundraising will continue throughout. 
Eden District Council have replaced some parts on existing equipment to prolong 
their life, which gives us an extended length of time to consult the community further 
and adapt the project phases as needed each time before we look for further grant 
funding. 

No of 
beneficiaries 

60 No of volunteers 9 

  

Assessment 

Organisation Volunteer ran group who would like to update their play area in the village.  
The village is about 4 miles (6.4 km) east of the M6 motorway, and Shap. At the 
2001 census the parish had a population of 538, decreasing to 517 at the 2011 
Census. 
The area is of historic significance with some 90 sites of prehistoric village 
settlements nearby. the village has a community hall and community pub. 

62



 

Finances Accounts dated 30/06/2022 show an income of £195,329 and expenditure of 
£11,049.  Their bank statement shows £2,500 for this project. 
The Parish Council own a cottage which was bequeathed to them but needs 
refurbishment.  They have set aside £178k for this. 
 

Need & Demand Small village in a rural area. They have said they are getting more children living in 
the village and require this area to be safe for them to use. 
 

Project Upgrade to the existing play area.  they would like to renew some equipment, 
provide wet pour under the equipment and level the area out. Quote has been 
provided along with plans for the project. 
 

Budget / Value 
for Money 

Quotes provided for the work. 
 

Future 
Sustainability 

When the play area was put in place in 2000 they obtained a 25 year lease from the 
owners of the land.  A letter is provided from the owner to say they will extend for 
another 15 years, this is in the process of being put in place. 

Impact Community facility upgraded in a rural village. 
 

Safeguarding Safeguarding policy provided which requires more detail.  At the moment all 
safeguarding issues to be reported to Cumbria Safeguarding Hub.  They should have 
their own safeguarding officer trained in safeguarding procedures. No mention of 
reviewing the policy of a procedure for reporting, they should be aware if there are 
any issues. 
 

Any other 
comments & 
recommendation 

Parish council who wish to upgrade their village play area.  
They have asked the Yorkshire National park if they require planning permission and 
their response was no. 
The PC pay the insurance, and Eden District maintain the play area until the contract 
ends in 2027, with the new unitary authority taking over we aren't sure what happens 
after 2027. 
 
Recommend support from these two funds conditional on donor agreement. 

Conditions Conditional on updated safeguarding policy and Westmorland donor agreement. 

 

Previous Funding Details 

No. of allocations No. of approved allocations Total Amount Awarded 

1 0 £0.00 

 

63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 CUMBRIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AGREEMENT
	Holehird - Balance Sheet for Meeting 20.09.22
	Holehird - Income & Expenditure Account for Meeting 20.09.22
	Holehird - Notes to the Accounts for Meeting 20.09.22
	Holehird - Schedule of Grants Paid for Meeting 20.09.22

	6 GRANT APPLICATIONS
	23897 Allithwaite and Cartmel Parish Council
	23891 Stainton Institute
	23727 - The Lake District Foundation
	23871 Kendal & District Parkinsons Support Group
	23790 PBC Foundation
	23912 Heron Corn Mill
	23875 Kendal Windows on Art
	23713 Western Dales Community Bus Service Limited
	23885 Crosby Ravensworth PC


